
GOVERNOR’S COUNCIL ON DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

 
Rural Services Committee Meeting 

 
LOCATION 

3601 C Street 
Anchorage, Alaska 

Teleconference 
 

Meeting Date 
August 10, 2011 

 
Attendees: 

Anna Attla, Chair 
Tom Cyrus 
Banarsi Lal 
Justine Sheehan 
 

Community Members: 
 Laurie Cooper 
 
Guests: 
 Shane Southwick 
 
Staff: 

Jennifer Jones 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:   Paula DiPaolo 
   Peninsula Reporting 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and       August 10, 2011  
Special Education Rural Services Committee Meeting 
 

2 

Call to Order – 2:00 p.m. 
Roll Call 
 
WELCOME FROM THE CHAIR 
 
Review of the Council Mission Statement 
 
The mission statement was recited. 
 
Welcome and Introductions 
 
Anna Attla announced that she was reappointed to the Council for 
another three years. 
 
Jennifer Jones introduced Shane Southwick from the Alaska State 
Library Online With Libraries Project.  Shane Southwick stated that 
the project is to increase the computing capabilities of all the public 
libraries around the state of Alaska. 
 
ELECTION OF VOTING MEMBERS 
 
The committee members decided to postpone their discussion of 
voting members until the next meeting because there was not a 
quorum at this time. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA AND PAST MINUTES 
 
The agenda and past minutes could not be approved because there 
was not a quorum. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 

 
Jennifer Jones stated that she and Anna Attla helped facilitate an 
Alliance for Full Participation planning meeting at the University.  
They did some planning and discussed attending the national 
meeting, improving the employment rate for people with 
developmental disabilities, and supported employment. 
 
 
 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and       August 10, 2011  
Special Education Rural Services Committee Meeting 
 

3 

UPDATE ON THE ONLINE WITH LIBRARIES PROJECT 
 
Shane Southwick stated that their objective is to provide resources to 
everybody in Alaska and stated that they feel it is very important that 
everybody have the same opportunities no matter where they are 
living. 
 
Shane stated that the OWL project received $5.2 million from the 
Department of Commerce, $1.5 million through the Bill and Melinda 
Gates Foundation, and other funding through local contributors and 
the Rasmuson Foundation.  He stated that they received a grant 
through the federal government called the Broadband Technologies 
Opportunity Program to increase broadband and computing 
capabilities in libraries. 
 
The project has been broken up into different areas.  The most 
expensive part of the project is getting high-speed broadband into the 
remote libraries.  They have signed a contract with GCI as their 
vendor, and GCI is in the process of putting high-speed broadband 
into 35 libraries this year and another 40 plus next year.  He stated 
that the communities of Fairbanks and Anchorage and other 
communities on the road system are available for this project, but 
they are focusing on rural Alaska. 
 
One of the purposes of the high-speed broadband is to increase 
distance education opportunities.  Another is to develop a 
videoconferencing network that organizations such as the Council 
can use to interface during meetings and trainings. 
 
Shane Southwick stated that they are creating jobs with this money in 
many of the villages through the libraries.  He stated that they have a 
map on their Alaska OWL website that shows the status on the 
project. 
 
Shane stated that other partners in the project include the Governor’s 
Council, Alaska Library Network, University of Alaska, Department of 
Health and Social Services, Department of Public Safety, Stone Soup 
Group, Cooperative Extension Service, and many others. 
 



Governor’s Council on Disabilities and       August 10, 2011  
Special Education Rural Services Committee Meeting 
 

4 

Shane stated that their grant money runs out in August of 2013, so 
they have to spend $8.5 million and have the project completed by 
then.  He stated that they got off to a slower start because of some 
legal issues with the bidding process for contractors. 
 
Jennifer Jones stated that this is a fantastic opportunity for many of 
the people they work with, but she was wondering if they have had 
any conversations about how to maintain a level of privacy for people 
using the videoconferencing.  He stated that it has been part of their 
conversations, and they are going to be developing ways to work 
around that.  He stated that one option is to schedule 
videoconferences when the libraries are closed for business. 
 
Shane Southwick invited committee members to contact him if they 
need more information or have any additional questions.  
 
REVIEW OF THE WORK PLAN GOALS AND ACTIVITIES 
 
After a brief discussion, the committee decided to discuss work plan 
goal 2, advocate for improved secondary transition services, at their 
next meeting. 
 
Tom Cyrus stated that he will be meeting with Art Arnold and will get 
some information on this topic from him. 
 
DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next scheduled teleconference is October 12, 2011 at 1:30 p.m.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:00 p.m. 


